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The Dr. D. T. Porter Building, originally constructed as the Continental National Bank 
Building in 1894-1895, stands on the Mid-America Mall (formerly Main Street) at the 
southwest corner of Court Square in downtown Memphis. Rising twelve stories, the 
Porter Building was the city's first skyscraper. As such, it is characterized by a 
fireproofed structural steel skeleton covered by a non-load bearing curtain wall of red 
brick, stone, and terra cotta. Designed by the architectural firm of Jones, Hain and 
Kirby, it represents one of the last commissions of the senior partner, Edward Culliatt 
Jones. The firm of Dun Perley and Company, General Contractors, erected the structure.

From its corner site the Porter Building commands the approach to Court Square from 
the south, along the Mall. From the north it effectively punctuates the end of the 
row of buildings which enclose the south side of Court Square. The two story high 
band of Alabama limestone at street level both relates to the scale of the pedestrian an 
emphasizes the dominant location of the original main banking room which has been 
raised slightly above sidewalk level.

Of the four sides of the building, only the west and north facades are highly fenestra- 
ted. The style of these two facades is perhaps best described as eclectic, with 
elements of both the Northern Italian Renaissance and the Richardsonian Romanesque. 
The west facade, divided into six structural bays, is of particular interest due to its 
assymetrical composition and variety of fenestration.

The main entrance, located in the fifth bay, is marked by a shallow portico framed on 
either side by Corinthian columns with red granite shafts and limestone capitals. 
Granite steps rise approximately four feet above street level to the second floor. The 
first floor, located partially below grade, is entered by separate steps on the west 
facade. Above the main entrance, carved in stone, is the inscription, "Dr. D. T. 
Porter". A similar inscription is found on the north facade. The limestone facing 
which extends to the top of the second story is terminated by the first of numerous 
cornices and features egg-and-dart molding. Seven tall plate-glass windows open into 
the main banking room on the second floor.

Fenestration of both the west and north facades above this level is rich and varied. 
A second cornice occurs above the fifth floor and from early photographs can be seen 
to be a response to the prevailing cornice height of adjacent buildings which have since 
disappeared or been altered. Immediately below this cornice the third, fourth, and 
fifth bays of the west facade are visually terminated by round masonry arches springing 
from Corinthian pilasters. The differentiation of these three bays by this device lends 
a note of assymetry to the facade which is continued to the full height of the building. 
Other windows at this and the upper levels are capped by ornamented terra cotta lintels. 
At the eighth floor, cornices and arched windows recur except in the third, fourth, 
and fifth bays. These bays continue uninterrupted to the tenth story. .Windows in the 
fourth bay are further emphasized by ornate terra cotta frames. At the eleventh story, 
the highest full floor, smaller masonry arches occur except in the third and fifth 
bays of the west facade where heavy carved terra cotta lintels are substituted. At
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The Dr. D. T. Porter Building was the first skyscraper constructed in Memphis and 
represents one of the last buildings designed by Edward Culliatt Jones. It is archi­ 
tecturally significant not only for its steel structure but also for the excellence 
of its masonry curtain wall and the material and workmanship of the interior finishes. 
Originally built as the Continental National Bank Building, it was later acquired by 
the heirs of Dr. D. T. Porter, for whom it was renamed as a memorial. Porter, a mayor 
of Memphis, is credited with leading the city through the troubled years following the 
forfeiture of the City Charter.

In 1894 construction began on a new twelve story office building for the Continental 
National Bank of Memphis; it was advertised as the largest national bank in West Ten­ 
nessee. Located on North Main Street overlooking Court Square, the new high-rise 
building was the first of its kind in the city with a structural steel skeleton and was 
the world's tallest building heated by a hot water system. When the new building was 
opened in 1895, special excursions by train and river boat brought the curious public 
to ride the elevators to the roof garden to enjoy the unprecedented view.

The Continental Building was designed by the local architectural firm of Jones, Hain 
and Kirby, the senior partner of which was Edward Culliatt Jones (1822-1902). Originall 
from Charleston, South Carolina, where he designed many fine Classical Revival buildings 
Jones came to Memphis in 1866. Among his many other local commissions were the Fontaine 
and Lee houses (originally the Woodruff and Goyer residences) designed in partnership 
with Mathias Harvey Baldwin. Both houses are included in Victorian Village, which is 
listed in the National Register.

By 1899 the Continental National Bank had fallen prey to the financial turbulence of the 
"Gay Nineties" and was in liquidation. In a public auction held on the front steps of 
the building, it was sold to the heirs of Dr. D. T. Porter, who then renamed it as a 
memorial to him.

As a result of the devastating yellow fever epidemics of the 1870s, as well as a debt- 
ridden local government, the city of Memphis surrendered its charter in 1879. David 
Tinsley Porter (1827-1898) was appointed president of the Taxing District of Shelby 
County, an office equivalent to mayor of Memphis. Using state controls, he was suc­ 
cessful in restoring financial stability. In addition, Porter was instrumental in 
building the city's first public sewer system.
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the twelfth floor, or penthouse, small Corinthian columns frame the windows. The 
penthouse, which occupies only the northernmost two bays of the building, is empha­ 
sized by its greater height. In addition, these two bays are differentiated from the 
third, fourth, and fifth bays as discussed above. Both the penthouse and the southern 
portion of the west facade are crowned with heavy, ornate terra cotta cornices and 
balustrades.

The south and east facades are, by comparison, quite plain. On the south the unfene- 
strated masonry facade has recently been adorned by a large contemporary nsuper-graphic. 
The east facade is broken into two masonry masses, unfenestrated except for the area 
between, where windows are found.

The interior of the Porter Building has allowed to deteriorate over the years. Never­ 
theless, it is possible to detect numerous traces of the original finishes. The main 
entrance stairs open into a small elevator lobby on the second floor. Immediately to 
the north was located the main banking room. Here the original Corinthian scagliola 
columns, ornate ceiling beams, red marble wainscotting, and mosaic floor tile remain. 
The original oak fixtures, finished with oxidized silver metal work, have vanished. 
Behind the east wall of this room, built at a later date, may well be concealed the 
original vaults. These vaults have been described as being constructed of laminated 
steel, encased in an ornamental jacket, and surrounded with concrete.

From the lobby two elevator shafts extend to the eleventh floor. Immediately adjacent 
to the elevators, at the southeast corner of the building, is located the single large, 
open, skylighted stairwell which extends to the roof of the eleventh floor. From the 
roof, which was originally used as a garden and observatory, a fine view of downtown 
Memphis and the Mississippi River is offered.

The condition of the upper office floors is at present poor. For the most part, howevei 
the original oak doors and trim survive. The penthouse, reached by a separate interior 
stair, contains a small office in which the fine original paneled oak walls and molded 
plaster ceiling remain.

The building is heated by hot water. It was originally the tallest building in the 
world equipped with such a system.

Over the years several alterations have partially changed the original appearance of the 
Porter Building. In 1947 a mezzanine floor was constructed in the main banking room, 
partially lowering the high ceiling and enclosing the area where the vaults are thought 
to be located. Also at this time the south end of the second floor and part of the west 
facade were altered to create a small retail space at street level. In 1976 the first 
floor was converted to a restaurant and part of the limestone exterior facing was covere
with wooden paneling. At the present time, only the first and second floors are occupie 
The entire building above the second floor has been vacant since 1966.
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The Porter Building became one of Memphis' best known buildings and for many years 
was fully occupied by a variety of professional and commercial tenants. By 1966 all 
floors above the second story were vacated, and the building has continued to be 
largely unoccupied up to the present time. A Memphis architectural firm is presently 
investigating the feasibility of restoring and reusing the building.
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